
Meeting of:  Rochdale South Township Committee
Date: Wednesday, 5th June, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4. ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5. OPEN FORUM 

Up to half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to 
raise any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township.

6. MINUTES 3 - 7

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township 

Public Document Pack



Committee held 13th March 2019.

7. NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING – DESIGNATION OF THE 
PROPOSED THORNHAM ST. JOHN'S NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA 
AND FORUM 

8 - 12

To seek Township approval to designate the Thornham St. John's 
Neighbourhood Area and Forum

8. ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 13 - 57

To approve Rochdale South’s Township Funds terms and conditions, 
and to agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

9. ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS 
AND APPOINTMENTS 2019/20 

58 - 63

The Committee is requested to confirm its delegated decision making 
arrangements and to make appointments to the Township Sub-
Committees and other bodies.

Rochdale South Township Committee Members
Councillor Shakil Ahmed Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor Allen Brett Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor Jean Hornby Councillor Jane Howard
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Aasim Rashid Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Angela Smith Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Elsie Wraighte Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 13th March 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Sultan Ali (in the Chair); Councillors Ali Ahmed, Iftikhar 
Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Biant, Farnell, Gartside, Heakin, Holly, 
Hornby, Meredith, O’Neill, Rashid, Sheerin, Sullivan, Wazir, Winkler and 
Zaheer.

OFFICERS:  V. White, I. Trickett (Neighbourhoods Directorate), F. Davies 
(Children’s Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Inspector D. Callaghan (Greater Manchester 
Police), 
C. Murphy (Metro Moneywise Credit Union) and three members of the public.

APOLOGIES
44 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brett, Brosnan, 
Cocks, Howard, Nickson, Rana, Angela Smith and Zaman. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
45 There were no declarations of interest.

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - UPDATE
46 Inspector Darren Callaghan (Greater Manchester Police (GMP)) 
updated the Township Committee on activities and initiatives that were 
undertaken by GMP in the Rochdale Township. 

a. Operation Sceptre – an operation to target and counter ‘knife crime’. 
This was an initiative that was taking place across the whole of GMP’s 
footprint. Members noted Inspector Callaghan’s comments that 
Rochdale had the second lowest level of knife crime of the 10 Greater 
Manchester authorities (after Bury). GMP were involved in a wide 
ranging campaign in this regard that included conveying messages via 
social media outlets and visits to schools and colleges.

b. Operation Dynamo – an initiative to counter a recent ‘spike’ in the theft 
of motor vehicles and the theft of property from motor vehicles.

c. Operation Bridger – an operation to counter threats to local politicians 
and community leaders in the Borough

d. Operation Dragster – an initiative to counter the illegal use of ‘off-road’ 
vehicles including the use of drones. This initiative had resulted in the 
seizure of three vehicles.

e. Operation Considerate – an initiative to clamp down on illegal and 
dangerous driving practices. This exercise was undertaken at different 
locations in Rochdale and resulted in action being taken against drivers 
for offences such as using mobile phones whilst driving, drivers and 
front seat passengers not wearing seatbelts and drivers not having 
valid road tax or insurance for their vehicles

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



f. Operation Bohemia – an initiative to counter youth anti-social behaviour 
in and around Rochdale’s town centre area

g. GMP were working closely with Rochdale Town Centre management 
Company to look at ways of making the town centre area safer for all 
users and to encourage the greater patronage of families.

Further to the GMP presentation at the Committee’s last meeting, on 23rd 
January 2019, Inspector Callaghan reported upon improvements to the 101 
telephone service and he had circulated to Members of the Committee, written 
details of their management structure in the Rochdale Township area, 
including the names of the appropriate senior officers and the areas in which 
GMP teams operate.

Resolved;
That the Greater Manchester Police update be noted and welcomed.

METRO MONEYWISE CREDIT UNION
47 The Committee received a presentation from a representative of Metro 
Moneywise, Ms. C. Murphy, on Metro Moneywise including its association 
with Rochdale Borough Council, outlining its benefits and key services.

A Member suggested that the Council investigate the possibility of the Council 
working together with Metro Moneywise Credit Union to develop a borough-
wide Credit Union.

Decided:
The work of the Metro Moneywise Credit Union be commended by the 
Committee and the presentation be noted and welcomed.

OPEN FORUM
48 There were no issues raised in the Committee’s Open Forum session.

MINUTES
49 Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township Committee held 23rd 
January 2019 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES SUB-COMMITTEE
50 Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale Township Action and Resources 
Sub-Committee held 14th February 2019, be noted.

ROCHDALE NEW ALLOTMENTS PROVISION
51 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which advised that across the Borough there were currently 
524 allotment plots which was not considered to be not enough to meet 
current demand. As at 25th February 2019 there were 985 people on the 
waiting list for an allotment in the Borough, more than quadruple the figure in 
2015.  Allotment plots were presently allocated at the rate of 30 plots per year 
through natural turnover and, on average, the Council received 160 new 

Page 4



applications for allotments year on year.  The waiting time had therefore 
increased significantly from seven years in 2015 years ago to a potential 33 
years if the demand was to remain at its present level.  

The Council’s Environmental Management Service had been tasked with 
creating 100 new plots a year, every year, for the next five years.  This had 
been approved by the Cabinet with provisionally allocated Capital funding to 
enable delivery. Each Township had been asked to identify viable sites within 
their boundaries. The Environmental Management Service had been working 
with the Council’s Planning and Estates services to create a list of potential 
sites.

The Committee were being asked to approve that formal consultation be held 
regarding the potential use of the following sites for new allotment provision:

a. Thrum Hall open space off Shawclough Way
b. Cherrington Drive, Castleton
c. Hutchinson Road, Norden
d. Ings Lane, Spotland
e. Oldham Road/Craiglands, near Kirkholt

A Member expressed his reservations regarding the proposals to locate 
allotments at Oldham Road, as this was a major ‘Gateway’ entrance to the 
Borough. Instead he suggested that officers in the Environmental 
Management Service liaise with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing with a view 
to finding suitable locations on some of the open space land in the Kirkholt 
area. The Craiglands location was therefore removed from the list of potential 
sites.

The Chair permitted Mr N. Morrell to address the Committee in relation to 
proposals, detailed in the report, to locate allotment plots at Hutchinson Road, 
Norden.

Alternatives considered:
A variety of sites across the Township had already been considered and 
declined at the shortlisting stage by officers for technical reasons. In addition 
Members were invited to nominate additional sites for technical testing to see 
if they were viable options.

Resolved:
1. The Committee approves that the following sites be approved, for 

consultative purposes, as potential sites for allocation for new allotment 
provision in Rochdale Township: Thrum Hall open space off 
Shawclough Way, Cherrington Drive, Castleton, Hutchinson Road, 
Norden and Ings Lane, Spotland.

2. Members of the Committee be requested to liaise with appropriate 
officers in the Council’s Environmental Management Service regarding 
areas for potential use as allotment sites, in their Wards.

Reasons for the decision:

Page 5



The recommendations in the report would enable the Council to work towards 
meeting recommendations of Government standards on how many allotment 
plots should be provided and would also enable the Council’s Environmental 
Management Service to make progress towards its target of achieving an 
additional 500 allotment plots across the Borough.
Eligible for call-in: Yes

THE NEED FOR EXTRA PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES 2019 - 2023
52 The Township Committee was consulted on a report of the Director of 
Children’s Services which advised that there was a need to keep under review 
the need for extra class places in each of the Borough’s Townships. The 
purpose of the report was to set out proposals to address the need for extra 
Reception Year places. Pupil place planning sought to ensure that the 
Townships were kept aware of school spaces and pupil numbers within their 
area and to aid local government decision making.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendations:
The Council has a statutory duty to provide education and school places to all 
school aged children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to 
plan adequately for predicted pupil numbers.
Eligible for Call-in: No

THE NEED FOR EXTRA YEAR 7 SCHOOL PLACES 2019-2028
53 The Township Committee were consulted on a report of the Director of 
Children’s Services which outlined strategies for managing the predicted 
shortfall in year 7 places for the intake years of 2019 and 2020. Appropriate 
staff in Children’s Services were working to aid the Department for Education 
and any successful academy to open a new school in the Borough for 
September 2021 for future places that are needed.

The Council’s Schools Organisation and Planning Team were currently in 
discussions with schools about any additional places offered for September 
2019. It was anticipated that the numbers of additional places would change 
from those presented in the submitted report for ‘own admission’ authority 
schools. The government had made an announcement to say they were going 
to fund all special school applications that “meet the criteria”. Rochdale 
Council has submitted an expression of interest to have a new secondary 
special school specializing in Autism and Communications special needs. The 
Committee was asked to note the plans for extra capacity for September 
2020.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendation;
Since 2005 the number of pupils in schools has been rising steadily. Extra 
capacity has been created in both the Primary and Secondary school estates. 

Page 6



11 of the 12 secondary schools in the Borough have had building expansions 
or taken numbers over their Pupil Admission Number. Two schools are 
currently undergoing building works but have already raised their Published 
Admission Number to take extra children. No further secondary school 
expansions are in the pipeline and two new schools are required to be built in 
the Borough; one in the north Pennines and one in Middleton.
Eligible for Call-in: No

ROCHDALE GRASS VERGE MANAGEMENT
54 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which examined proposals for cutting grass verges across 
the Township. The proposals outlined in the report were intended to: deliver 
cost savings, develop a suitable habitat for wildlife; improve the appearance of 
the Township; minimise the need to mow; enable the trialling of new models 
for how verges are to be maintained; deliver floral verges in the summer 
months; and to retain a neat finish in the winter months after flowers have 
faded. The appendix to the report detailed a series of locations across the 
Borough where the proposed grass cutting could occur. 

As part of the process to implement the programme, the Director of 
Neighbourhoods reported upon the intended use of a growth retardant 
chemical to slow the rate of grass growth and therefore reduce the frequency 
of mowing.  This would mainly be used on verges where Traffic Management 
Orders were required. Members expressed their concern at the proposed use 
of the growth retardant chemicals.

Alternatives considered:
To cease mowing entirely: this option not to be pursued except for 
rural/informal areas where that method will not look out of place.

Resolved:
1. The Township Committee approves the shortlist of sites detailed in the 

appendix to the report provided in the attached document, for the grass 
verge management scheme, on the condition that the growth retardant 
chemicals are not used.

Reasons for the decision:
To enable the Council’s Environmental Management Services to improve the 
quality of grass verges in terms of floral features, wildlife habitat value and to 
reduce pollution whilst delivering budget savings.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes

Page 7



Report to Rochdale South Township Committee & Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 05 June 2019
13 June 2019

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Development & 
Housing

Report Author Paul Moore

Public/Private Document Public

Neighbourhood Planning – Designation of the proposed Thornham 
St. John's Neighbourhood Area and Forum

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

To inform Members that consultation has taken place on the applications for 
the designation of a Neighbourhood Area and a Neighbourhood Forum for 
Thornham St. John's.  

To seek Township approval to designate the Thornham St. John's 
Neighbourhood Area and Forum to support future preparation of the 
Thornham St. John's Neighbourhood Plan.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

That Township Committee approves the Thornham St. John's Neighbourhood 
Area and Forum for designation.

If approved, the area and forum designation should be publicised on the 
Council’s website as soon as possible.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 required that 
provided the Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area and Forum 
applications meet the requirements as set out in Sections 61F to 61L of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Parts 2 and 3 of the Regulations, 
then the Council must publicise the applications for 6 weeks.

These Regulations require that the Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood 
Forum must, inter alia: have a constitution; at least 21 members representative 
of the area and no part of the proposed Neighbourhood Area may overlap with 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7



any other designated Neighbourhood Area.

It is considered that the Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area and Forum 
applications satisfies the requirements of the Regulations, and as no 
objections were received, the recommendation is to designate Thornham St. 
John’s as a Neighbourhood Area and Forum.

The application of a neighbourhood Area and Forum will enable the 
community to begin the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan for their area.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Background

Neighbourhood Planning Overview
Neighbourhood planning is a community led process intended to shape and 
promote development at the neighbourhood (i.e. local) level.

It was introduced through the Localism Act (2011) to enable communities to 
define Neighbourhood Areas and establish Neighbourhood Forums to draw up 
a Neighbourhood Plan. It is guided by a range of legislation and national 
guidance. LPAs are required by law to support the neighbourhood planning 
process.

Neighbourhood Areas and Forums
A neighbourhood area is proposed by a prospective neighbourhood forum and 
designated by the LPA. This is the boundary for the area over which the 
neighbourhood forum is responsible. It will also form the boundary of the area 
in relation to which a neighbourhood development plan can be brought 
forward. Neighbourhood areas can cover areas across LPA boundaries and 
can be any shape or size. Only one neighbourhood area can cover one 
location.

Neighbourhood forums are community-led groups which seek to help shape 
growth and development within their relevant neighbourhood areas. Groups 
must apply to their LPA to be designated as a neighbourhood forum. Once 
designated, a neighbourhood forum can develop a neighbourhood plan for its 
neighbourhood area. As the LPA for its area, we have a statutory duty to 
determine applications to designate neighbourhood forums.

Once designated, a forum ceases to have effect after 5 years. 

Consultation undertaken
The application for designation as a Neighbourhood Area and a 
Neighbourhood Forum was publicised for a 6 week public consultation period 
from the 25th March until 6 May 2019.

In total, the number of response’s for each of the following were:
 Neighbourhood Area – 24 supporting the application
 Neighbourhood Forum -  19 supporting the application

Page 9



There were no objections received to the consultation on the proposed 
neighbourhood area and forum applications.  All the responses were 
supportive of the proposed neighbourhood area and neighbourhood forum.  

It is officers view that the Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area and 
Forum applications satisfies the requirements of the Regulations, and as 
no objections were received, the recommendation is to designate 
Thornham St. John’s as a Neighbourhood Area and Forum.

Next Steps
If it is deemed appropriate to designate the proposed neighbourhood area and 
forum for a prospective Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Development 
Plan, then the designation will be publicised on the Council’s website to make 
residents, businesses and other interested parties aware of it.  Thereafter, the 
process of preparing the neighbourhood plan can begin.  This stage includes 
consultation with residents and businesses within the plan area, and areas 
that may be affected by the plan.

Alternatives Considered
The Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 
prescribe time limits for the determination of a neighbourhood area 
application. Except where a local planning authority is required to designate 
the whole of a parish, applications must be determined within 13 weeks of first 
being publicised, or 20 weeks where the application relates to more than one 
local planning authority area. If these time limits are not met, the local 
planning authority must designate all of the area applied for.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no specific financial implications arising from the recommendations 
within this report or for the Council’s involvement in the process at this stage.  
Going forward, the costs to the Council will depend on the nature and scale of 
help and support provided and the ability of community groups to contribute 
financially to the process or obtain further funding to support the plan 
preparation.  The duty to support does not require the Council to give financial 
assistance to a designated neighbourhood forum unless it chooses to do so.  
Funding is available to authorities to cover the costs of the independent check 
and referendum.   It is not possible to provide an authoritative estimate of the 
total costs involved in preparing a plan.  However, if the Council decides to 
provide financial assistance then a separate report will be provided to agree to 
this.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk 
considerations as set out below:

• Local communities will be required to show that they are able to 
accommodate requirements for growth and development in their areas in 
accordance with the Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
If they simply seek to prevent development, current Guidance indicates the 

Page 10



Plan will not succeed at an independent examination.
• Resourcing neighbourhood planning forums and neighbourhood 
planning areas is likely to be an issue faced by communities and authorities.  
It is noted and would be expected that much of the work and resource is 
expected to be undertaken by the designated neighbourhood forum.

Consultation

7. If the applications for Neighbourhood Area and Forum are approved, the 
Council intends to publicise the two applications between 19th June and 31st 
July 2018.

During this time the application and supporting information will be published 
on the Council’s website, and paper copies of the documents will be 
available in Rochdale Library, Castleton and Middleton Library.  Stakeholders 
on the Council’s planning policy database will be notified by letter or email.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Sohida Banu – 
Sohida.Banu@Rochdale.Gov.uk
Paul Moore

Paul.Moore@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 11



Appendix 1 – Map of Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Plan Area

Page 12



Agenda Item

Report to Rochdale South Township Committee

Date of Meeting 5 June 2019
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Rochdale Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2018/19 and 
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2019/20.

1.2 Members are asked to approve Rochdale Township Funds terms and 
conditions, and agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2018/19 (Appendix 1 
and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2018/19 
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Rochdale Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Rochdale Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2019/20 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Rochdale Township Funds 
2019/20 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

2.6 Members agree any uncommitted/unspent funds be reallocated to a central 
revenue or capital funding stream as appropriate before the end of January 
2020 to enable Members to spend/commit all Rochdale Township Funds 
during 2019/20 financial year.

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Rochdale Township Fund is delegated to the Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2 Rochdale Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 
Township revenue and capital funds 2018/19 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2018/19 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported 
to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2 A review of Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds has been 
undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2019/20.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Rochdale 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference 
to the local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2018/19 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix 5.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Rochdale Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2019/20 (Appendix 6).

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Rochdale 
Township Funds 2019/20 as follows:

a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, 
Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action 
& Resources Delegated Sub Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any disputes 

Page 14



concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

b) Rochdale Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Rochdale Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee for 
decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale 
Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all 
Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

4.7 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Rochdale Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2018/19 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Rochdale Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2019/20 in Appendix 5.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Rochdale Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 15



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 156,432          61.57% 87.32%

Base Budget 2018/19 185,800          

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 -                     

Total budget for 2018/19 342,232          

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 210,699          

Commitments 88,141            

Total Actual + Commitments 298,839          

Budget Remaining 2018/19 43,393            

Forecast Outturn 342,232          

Potential over/underspend -                     

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2018/19   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

      £ 

Members Fund -                     54,000      -                       54,000      13,660           23,628          3,062          13,650       54,000       -                  

Ward Fund -                     72,000      -                       72,000      16,521           17,606          626             37,246       72,000       0                 

Projects Fund 7,529              19,800      -                       27,329      11,659           5,093            (41,182)       8,367         (16,063)      43,392        

Clean & Green Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      4,488             2,025            465             13,022       20,000       -                  

Communities & Engagement Priority Fund -                     20,000      -                       20,000      6,288             11,376          2,336          -                 20,000       -                  

Township Allocated Funds (pre 2018/19) 148,903          -                -                       148,903    35,524           41,931          34,693        36,755       148,903     -                  

Total 156,432          185,800    -                       342,232    88,141           101,659        (0)               109,040     298,839     43,393        

 REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE 43,392      

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

P
age 16



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 105,972     100.00% 100.00%

Base Budget 2018/19 182,000     

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 (63,700)      

Total budget for 2018/19 224,272     

Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 224,271     

Commitments -                 

Total Actual + Commitments 224,271     

Budget Remaining 2018/19 1                

Forecast Outturn 224,272     

Potential over/underspend -                 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments 

2018/19   

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

      £ 

Armed Forces Fund 6,332         -                 -                       6,332          -                   6,332          -                 -                6,332       -                  

Capital Fund 99,640       182,000     (63,700)            217,940      -                   21,222        -                 196,717     217,939   1                 

Total 105,972     182,000     (63,700)            224,272      -                   27,554        -                 196,717     224,271   1                 

  CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE  1                

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

P
age 17



1 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 

 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2018/19 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects Fund £19,800 
Base Budget 

 
£7,529 

b/f 2017/18 
 
 

Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Rochdale Township. 
 
Funds were used to support 11 projects during 2018/19 consisting of 5 community projects and 6 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included surveys to investigate reports of speeding vehicles 
using Kingsway, Turf Hill Road and Broad Lane, Rochdale; relocation of a lighting column on Newgate, Rochdale to 
improve disabled parking in the area; activities to promote the integration of new and migrant communities from 
Nigeria, Uganda, Morocco, Egypt, Cameroon, White British and Caribbean in Rochdale with the aim of bringing 
families together and create cultural awareness; League for Life programme that will provide young people with the 
opportunity to obtain Rugby League sports coaching after school; provision of laptops for basic IT classes for women 
especially from BME communities and a resource to teach ESOL; feasibility study into the conversion of the existing 
grass verge on Mansfield Road, Rochdale into parking bays; introduce health and fitness sessions in Kirkholt with 
physical activity at a very basic level provided by a trained fitness instructor and diet and healthy eating instruction; 
Fit, Read and Feed 2019 to be delivered by Libraries Service during the summer holidays at Balderstone Library to 
improve the physical, mental health and wellbeing of local children; move the Rochdale Town Centre WW1 2018 
centenary commemoration garden from its temporary location on Gracie Island to a new location in Rochdale 
Memorial Gardens to make way for a new garden display to build momentum for the arrival of Dippy the Dinosaur 
from the Natural History Museum to Riverside and action to reduce the rat population in the Rivington Street Car Park 
area after complaints from local businesses and community. 
 
At year end unallocated balances from other revenue funding streams were transferred into this budget to provide 
Members with the opportunity to identify and fund projects that have not been progressed due to lack of funds in those 
individual funding streams. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2019/20 receives a base budget of £54,977 (subject to final outturn 
agreed with Accountancy). 

 

P
age 18



2 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Ward Fund £72,000 
Base Budget 

Each Rochdale Township Ward received £8,000 to enable the Area Forums to maintain their success and 
effectiveness in addressing local issues raised at these community meetings. 
 
This fund was used to support 47 projects during 2018/19 consisting of 19 community projects and 28 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included a community engagement event for the switch on of 
the Christmas tree and launch of the new Strand Hub facilities and regenerated shopping parade; development of the 
two garden areas at the new Dementia Hub ‘The Willows’ to encourage residents to participate in outdoor activities 
and facilitate gardening clubs; installation of knee rail fencing to prevent vehicles parking on and causing damage to 
the grass verges on Bury and Rochdale Old Road; investigation into the speed of vehicles using Oldham Road and 
Queensway; installation of a heritage style notice board on Bamford Village Green; a new swimming pool cover for 
Castleton Health & Leisure Centre as the current cover is unusable and reduce heating costs; bulky waste amnesty to 
assist local residents from the Central Rochdale Ward with the removal of bulky waste items and reduce fly tipping in 
the area; improvement to the footpath across the Common from Cronkeyshaw Road to Heights Lane; deployable of a 
CCTV camera on the car park at the top of Freetrade Street to deter anti-social behaviour/criminal activity; installation 
of motorbike inhibitors across the footpaths/bridleways from Roods Lane to School Lane and prepare an area of land 
off Longfield Road/Bridgefold Road known as Stoney Hill for planting seeds to establish the community wildflower 
meadow. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Ward Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2019/20 receives a base budget of £20,000 with each Ward allocated 
£4,000 to allow for an increased base budget for the Projects Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2019/20. 

Members Fund £54,000 
Base Budget 

Each Rochdale Township Councillor received £2,000 to allocate to projects within their Ward for the benefit of the 
local community and environment. 
 
Funds were used to support 65 projects during 2018/19 consisting of 45 community projects and 20 
highways/environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included provision of a new defibrillator within a 
heated cabinet on the exterior of The Strand Hub to provide lifesaving equipment to the Kirkholt community; 
replacement equipment for 9th Heywood (St. Michael’s) Scout Group; installation of a soldier silhouette in the grounds 
of St Aidan’s Parish Church to commemorate the end of World War One; develop a large outdoor space at College 
Bank Flats with equipment for summer activities to reduce social isolation and encourage mutual support and 
friendships; a community event to coincide with the switch on of the Christmas lights outside Syke Community Base; 
Fit and Fed sessions at Turf Hill Community Centre, Rochdale during the summer holidays 2018 for local children to 
participate in multi-sport activities and receive a meal when not at school; Little Bookworms interactive storytelling 
sessions for young children which brings books to life through performing arts; supply and installation of new litter bins 
at various locations in Spotland and Falinge Ward and establish a Lego Club at Norden Library to introduce more 
children to the library and encourage children and their parents/carers to be more creative together. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Members Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2019/20 receives a base budget of £30,000 for each Rochdale South 
Township Councillor to be allocated £2,000. 

P
age 19



3 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Clean & Green 
Priority Fund 

£20,000 
Base Budget 

The Clean & Green Priority Fund was established to attain and maintain high environmental standards for Rochdale 
Township’s public spaces and assets.  The Clean & Green Priority Group identified/developed environmental projects 
and influenced funding decisions. 
 
Funds were used to support 11 environmental projects during 2018/19.  The variety of projects funded included a 
semi-permanent pergola to provide shelter from inclement weather for the community and school groups that visit the 
Moss Row Allotment site for activities and create a suitable area for open days and entertaining guests; installation of 
an interpretation board at the entrance to the Urban Walking Trail located next to Spotland Library to promote the trail 
to the local community, feature exercises/health advice and detail other walking trails in the borough; contribution 
towards Norden Women’s Institute’s commemorative bench to be placed outside Norden Old Library for community 
use to celebrate 20 years since the formation of the Women’s Institute; improve the floral displays and landscaping in 
Springfield Park; enhance existing Rochdale in Bloom schemes with Oldham Road Gyratory industrial metal sculpture 
to represent Rochdale’s industrial history to be provided with extra structural planting to complement the bedding 
display, Manchester Road/Drake Street sunburst flower bed and Town Centre planters to be added to with a variety of 
flowers and Castleton Gardens (junction of Manchester Road and Queensway) to be provided with additional plants 
for the shrub bed; planting to add to the renovation of the formal gardens to complement the improvements in 
Denehurst Park; creation of a Victorian Kitchen Garden within a walled area of Falinge Park that will provide the local 
community with the opportunity to grow fruits, vegetables and herbs, and complete the renovation of Packer Spout 
and St Chad’s Gardens with Rosemary, Lavender and Echinacea Purpurea planted. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Clean & Green Priority Fund is not retained in 2019/20 to allow for an increased base budget for the Projects Fund for 
Rochdale South Township in 2019/20. 

Communities & 
Engagement 
Priority Fund 

£20,000 
Base Budget 

The Communities & Engagement Priority Fund was established to encourage residents and community groups to get 
involved in shaping and delivering services and initiatives to meet local needs.  The Communities & Engagement 
Priority Group identified/developed community projects and influenced funding decisions. 
 
Funds were used to support 17 community related projects during 2018/19.  The variety of projects funded included a 
celebration of the 25th anniversary of Rochdale Shopmobility; a community engagement event at Rochdale Town Hall 
involving all knitting, crocheting and cross stitch/needle craft groups; coaching and competitive boxing opportunities to 
the local community and engaging more young people in the sport to improve their fitness and promote disciple; 
health sessions on drugs/alcohol, mental health, strokes and diabetes to raise awareness and educate the local 
community about these health issues; Rochdale Science Extravaganza to educate and inspire the local community 
with ‘women and science’ being the theme for this year’s event; a launch event for the Nigeria Community Association 
to raise awareness of their aims to promote cultural identity and establish a support and advice network and establish 
a Spotland Junior Hornets Holiday Club to give young people the opportunity to participate in rugby league coaching 
sessions, attend match day experiences at Rochdale Hornets home games and meet the player experiences. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Communities & Engagement Priority Fund is not retained in 2019/20 to allow for an increased base budget for the 
Projects Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2019/20. 

P
age 20



4 

 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £182,000 
Base Budget 

 
£99,640 

b/f 2017/18 
 

£63,700 
Budget 

Reduction 
 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects/schemes that benefit the Township’s community and environment, 
and realise the Township priorities in 2018/19.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community via Area Forums.  Cabinet on 25 September 2018 approved a budget reduction of £63,700. 
 
Funds were used to support 17 projects during 2018/19 consisting of 5 community projects and 12 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included outdoor gyms installed within the Lowerplace Play 
Area and Robinson’s Common to encourage the local community to become more active with free exercise and 
workout opportunities similar to those available in a gym or health club; improve the facilities in Kirkholt Community 
Church to meet the needs of people with mobility impairments and independent wheelchair users with the installation 
of two accessible toilets within the building; provision of Christmas lights on a tree located on Cronkeyshaw Common, 
Rochdale involving the supply and installation of the electrical infrastructure and LED tree lights; change of 
unrestricted time parking bays at the former Norden Bus Terminus and introduction of limited waiting outside shops on 
Edenfield Road, Norden to promote better use of the parking bays and assist customers of nearby businesses and 
Norden Jubilee Park users; supply and installation of six 6 metre galvanised steel street lighting columns in the North 
Street, East Street, South Street and West Street Quadrant, Rochdale to enhance lighting in the area and improve 
public safety; introduction of no waiting at any time restrictions on the length of the west side of Uttley Street, 
Rochdale to deter vehicles from parking and causing an obstruction on this narrow residential street; update the 
current bin infrastructure in Springfield Park with the replacement of 13 bins in the park with ‘Derby’ style bins; 
introduction of parking restrictions on Milkstone Road, Rochdale to prevent indiscriminate parking and provide limited 
waiting bays to assist the shops and businesses in the area; installation of a Changing Place Toilet in Denehurst 
House Café to meet the needs of people with a wide range of disabilities or complex care needs and complement the 
other developments in Denehurst Park; renovating vastly overgrown slopes in Broadfield Park down to The Esplanade 
to design out crime happening in this area; introduction of no waiting restrictions on Regent Street junction with 
Princess Street, Rochdale as vehicles are parking on either side of the entrance to the Colorlord factory preventing 
HGVs from gaining access to make deliveries and supply and installation of two benches to replace existing 
dilapidated wooden benches located at the rear of Belfield Road, Rochdale to provide seating for the local community. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund for Rochdale South Township receives a base budget of £102,830 in 2019/20 (subject to final outturn 
agreed with Accountancy). 

Armed Forces 
Fund 

£6,332 
b/f 2017/18 

Rochdale Township received a budget of £20,000 for a four year period in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing 
existing memorials and introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-
1918). 
 
This fund was used to deliver 1 project during 2018/19.  A local experienced mason was commissioned to restore the 
ensigns and glided lettering on Rochdale Cenotaph to enhance the appearance of the War Memorial for the First 
World War Centenary. 
 

 

P
age 21



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

  

“The children’s reaction and interaction was 
quite wonderful to see.  All thoroughly enjoyed 
the sessions and have been interested in our 
other activities” 
Johanna Yeomans 
Senior Library Assistant 

Rochdale Central Library 

 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 

Project: Little Bookworms 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £150 

 

Little Bookworms is an interactive storytelling session for young children which brings books 
to life through performing arts.  Rochdale Central Library organised sessions in Autumn and 
Spring delivered by a qualified drama teacher.  Each week Little Bookworms explored a new 
book using puppets and props with activities such as action songs, singing, dancing, messy 
play, sensory drama and arts and crafts.  The sessions promoted positive relationships with 
books and reading, introduced new words to extend vocabulary, encouraged exploration and 
imaginative role play and enhanced speaking and listening skills. 
 
‘The Gingerbread Man’ and ‘We’re Going on a Bear  
Hunt’ were the books selected for each of the storytelling  
sessions.  Children under 5 and their parents/carers  
were encouraged to participate in  the storytelling  
through interaction and drama; the children joined  
in the story by exploring the sensory areas set up  
by storyteller.  Even the very young children were  
totally engaged in the story and the activities.  The  
sessions have really helped encourage early literacy  
skills and the development of a love of reading. 

Page 22



 

 

  

“The children had an absolutely fab time on their bear hunt!  Thank you 
again for supporting Rochdale Central Library to put on these fantastic 
sessions which really encourage early literacy and the development of a 
love of reading” 

Joanna Yeomans 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Page 23



  

“We felt the project had successfully given 
people a high quality experience, raising their 
awareness of their local area and inspiring 
them to get involved in its long term care” 
Jude Murray 
Director 

NatureEd CIC 

 

Recipient: NatureEd CIC 

Project: Explore Your Environment 

Fund: Clean & Green Priority Fund 

Awarded: £1,450 

 

NatureEd CIC is a not-for-profit organisation committed to helping local communities enjoy 
and benefit from their local green spaces through exciting environmental opportunities.  
Working from their education base at Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre, NatureEd offer high 
quality environmental education experiences at an affordable cost through a range of site-
based and outreach learning opportunities. 
 
Explore Your Environment provided eco-activity sessions for five local voluntary sector 
groups based in different wards of Rochdale Township.  Participants were Norden Ladybirds 
& Brownies, Spotland Cubs, Sparth Saturday Club, Heybrook Families and Bamford 
Rainbows.  The sessions helped people to explore their local green spaces and to take an 
active role in caring for it.  Activities included bug hunting, making mini-beast  
homes, tree ID, creating decorations from natural materials, bird ID treasure  
hunt, making bird feeders, a spring scavenger hunt and making bird nesting  
stations.  Bird feeders and nesting stations created during the sessions have  
made physical improvements to the biodiversity of the local area. 

Bamford Rainbows learning about birds then making nesting socks for the birds in the Chapel 

Grounds and their own gardens 

Page 24



 

  

 

NatureEd created a family-friendly Explore Your Environment map of Balderstone Park and a 
new heritage activity.  The EYEspy Heritage Trail  
uses the map together with photographs and facts  
about features in the park to help local people  
to discover more about their local green space.   
The new resources have been shared with the  
Friends Group and nearby schools.  A hard  
copy of the map has been made available for loan  
at Balderstone Library and members of the  
public can download their own copies free  
from NatureEd’s website. 
 
Young people who participated in the eco-activity 
sessions used the experience towards achieving their nature  
and wildlife badges.  NatureEd received 100% feedback rating from eco-activity group 
leaders about the activities with everyone expressing an interest in booking again.  The 
EYEspy resources for Balderstone Park will encourage families to explore their local park, 
increasing physical exercise and having fun while learning about local heritage, so enhancing 
their health and wellbeing.  The Friends of Balderstone Park are interested in using the 
Heritage Trail as part of their events programme and plan on developing other activities using 
the new map.  Explore Your Environment provided local people with the opportunity to get 
actively involved in understanding and caring for wildlife and raising environmental 
awareness. 

Norden Brownies & 
Ladybirds taking a close 

look at the wildlife living in 
the green space on Black 
Pitts then making some 
homes for mini beasts to 

overwinter in. 

“Absolutely fantastic, it is an activity we will do again with the group 10/10” 

Leader of Norden Ladybirds & Brownies about mini beast hunt in the rain 

Page 25



      

“Participants have shared their experiences with others including family, friends and 
colleagues.  Parents of the Bamford Rainbows said lots of the girls had gone home 
talking about what they had done and how interesting it was.  The Norden Brownies 
Leader was going to repeat the activity at the school in Rochdale where they taught. 
Heybrook Sure Start shared details of the activity with other families on Twitter and 
one of the parents felt their children had enjoyed themselves so much that they 
subsequently joined in a Forest School session at Ealees Woods” 
Jude Murray 

Director, NatureEd CIC 

Spotland Cubs 
learning winter tree 

ID skills while making 
some fantastic 

traditional seasonal 
decorations from 
natural materials 

Sparth Saturday Club learning bird ID 
skills and making bird feeders in 
preparation for the RSPB Big Garden Bird 
Watch 

Heybrook 
families braving 
a hailstorm 
while on their 
hunt to find out 
which birds visit 
their outdoor 
play area… 

“It was so nice to look at what’s 
outside.  My child had really good 

concentration.  What a fab session” 

Parent about Heybrook Bird ID 

…while back indoors, making some 
feeders to help the birds survive the 
rest of winter 

Page 26



      

“The new PXB is designed for significantly 
faster rescue times, improved safety and 
reduces demands on staff, enabling them 
to continue to monitor other swimmers and 
perform key roles in a rescue situation” 
Jo Potts 
Facility Manager 

Castleton Health & Leisure CIC 

 

Recipient: Castleton Health & Leisure CIC 

Project: Castleton Swimming Pool PXB & Cover 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £990 & £1,715 

 

Castleton Health & Leisure CIC is a not-for-profit organisation providing a wide range of 
treatments, services, classes, training, education and workshops to benefit the Castleton 
community.  Castleton Baths was closed to the public for almost a year before re-opening as 
Castleton Health & Leisure Centre mornings, evenings and weekends.  Local schools use 
the pool for swimming lessons and galas.  Castleton Swimming Club has been reinstated 
and Aquabears train in the pool.  The building’s maintenance and improving the facilities is a 
priority such as reinstating the public viewing gallery above the pool. 
 
A Pool Extraction Board (PXB) was funded to ensure faster rescue times for users of the 
swimming pool and reduce manual handling demands placed on staff whilst extracting a 
casualty from the water.  Effective safety equipment gives the community peace of mind 
whilst enjoying the facilities.  The existing swimming pool cover was unusable 
(worn/damaged).  A new cover reduces heating costs by 15-20% plus contributes to reducing 
their carbon footprint.  The savings in heating costs can be reinvested into the pool facilities. 

Page 27



 

 

  

“Through past experience and reputation 
people know what a good scheme this is – 
local children were encouraged to join and 
parents wanted their child to be active 
throughout the summer holidays” 
Michelle Krauza, Library Officer - Digital 
& Young People and  
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & 

Customer Services Team Leader) 

 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 

Project: Fit, Feed and Read at Balderstone Library 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,363 

 
Balderstone Library’s Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered in partnership with 
Link4Life throughout the school summer holidays (30 July to 7 September 2018) aimed 
principally at children aged 5-11 in receipt of free school meals who might not otherwise have 
a meal at lunchtime in the school holidays.  The children had an opportunity to read and 
discuss the books they are reading, participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor 
sports sessions.  Link4Life promoted the initiative to all local primary schools by attending 
assemblies with information leaflets and registration forms.  Libraries promoted the scheme 
through the local press and on social media.  Local early help services also referred families to 
the initiative; supporting families key workers, social workers, integrated neighbourhood teams 
and community safety teams. 
 
Mischief Makers was the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2018 that aimed to 
get children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long 
holidays.  The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read any book as 
long as they are borrowed from the library.  Children receive special rewards each time they 
read a book and every child that completes the challenge is awarded a certificate and a  

Page 28



  

 
medal.  The Summer Reading Challenge is open to all primary school aged children and is 
designed for all reading abilities. All local primary schools are contacted and given resources  
to work with their local library to actively promote the National Reading Initiative.  Every child 
is given information regarding the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge and encouraged 
to take part. 
 

Celebrating the 80th anniversary of the much loved comic, Beano, Mischief Makers Summer 
Reading Challenge provided each child who signed up with their own map of Beanotown to 
help Dennis, Gnasher and friends to find mysterious buried treasure.  By reading and visiting 
the library, children received stickers to discover where the treasure is hiding plus a medal and 
a certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  Mischief Makers had a 
dedicated website for children taking part in the Challenge that allowed them to keep track of 
the books they read, write book reviews, enter competitions and chat to other readers. 
 

Children got up to all sorts of mischief enjoying craft activities and workshops from creating 
Dennis the Menace hair and mask, a Dennis in a box, a Bananaman shooter, Beano skittles, 
designing a cartoon character competition, designing a Fit, Feed and Read logo and a comic 
storyboard workshop.  Entertainment included Storytelling with Can ‘O’ Worms, Skylight 
Circus, John Piper’s Puppets, Craig Bradley the Poet, The Zoo Lab and Cartoon Storyboard 
Creations with Cat Jessop. 
 

Multi-sport coaches delivered the sport sessions utilising space in and around the library and 
Rochdale Supply Agency (RoSA) with Libraries’ staff and young volunteers facilitated the Read 
and Feed sessions.  The Fit, Feed and Read initiative provided the opportunity for young 
people to volunteer and develop new skills that will help them with their college and job 
applications. 

Page 29



  

 

Libraries partnership with Link4Life enabled resources to be optimised and offer a wider 
provision to those children who needed it.  A free meal for those children who might encounter 
difficulty receiving lunch when not in school was facilitated through a link established with 
FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could go hungry by 
distributing surplus food from the food industry).  A local caterer prepared and delivered a 
variety of sandwiches alongside the food from Fareshare to guarantee each child received a 
lunch and not be solely reliant on the fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Tesco also provided 
a one-off supply of fresh fruit which was distributed between participating libraries and sports 
locations.  Over 332 meals were offered to the young people who attended the Fit, Feed and 
Read sessions across the borough. 
 
Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into the library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt of 
free school meals. 

The scheme in 2018 was a success.  Key benefits: 

 Enhanced and supported mission for all children to read widely and for pleasure 

 Encouraged parental engagement and family involvement in reading 

 Helped schools make links with their local library and the wider community 

 Was intrinsically inclusive and contributed to the achievement of ALL pupils, 
including SEN disadvantaged pupils and the most able 

 Prevention of the tendency for children’s reading to dip over the holidays 

 Ensured consistency of the provision of a free lunch for those children in receipt of 
free school meals 

 
Michelle Krauza (Library Officer - Digital & Young People & Libraries) and 

Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer Services Team Leader) 

Page 30



 

      

“Bringing different groups from all over 
the community was a huge chance to 
help reduce isolation, socialise with new 
faces, improve mental wellbeing and 
learn and educate each other on different 
cultures” 
Hayley Tomlinson 
Community Builder, The Big Life 

Group 

 

Recipient: The Big Life Group 

Project: Community Engagement Knitting Event 

Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 

Awarded: £1,000 

 

The Big Life Group consists of social businesses, services and charities that offer a range of 
opportunities that help people to improve their own lives that include employment, family 
support, housing, lifestyle and behaviour change, health and wellbeing, mental health 
support, child care and volunteering.  Living Well Rochdale is a community-based health and 
wellbeing and prevention service that supports people using behaviour change techniques, 
to make positive lifestyle changes.  The service values and builds on the skills, knowledge, 
connections and the potential that all people and communities have to offer. 
 
A community engagement event organised in Rochdale  
Town Hall on 20 March 2019 was an opportunity for knitting,  
crocheting and cross stitch/needle craft groups to mix  
with people from different communities, share their talents,  
skills, knowledge and achievements, and change  
perceptions in the wider community about these hobbies. 
The participants also were able to learn and interact with 
different services such as Living Well, Link4Life and  
Mind who work to have a positive impact on their  
wellbeing. 

Page 31



  

“The highlight to me would be looking out across the whole of the room in the Town 
Hall to a room full of smiling faces, being proud of their hard work and skills and 
communicating with new people, creating new friendships, surrounded with the bright 
colours of the things knitted and being showcased.  I would also highlight the sheer 
creativity the knitters of Rochdale have shown, from knitted clothing, to knitted chicks 
and rabbits, to blankets, premature baby garments, hats, scarves, knitted fruit bowls 
and veg baskets, to the digestive system being knitted, a blood transfusion stand, a 
poppy river, afternoon tea - the list is endless.  I was amazed and inspired” 
Hayley Tomlinson 

Community Builder, The Big Life Group 

 

Organisations who have received donations from these groups were invited to the event to 
meet, network and thank the groups for all their continuous hard work and dedication.  It was 
a chance for homeless services, premature baby wards and local churches to put a face to 
the donators.  It was also an opportunity for organisations to know what is available and to 
know where to refer clients to in the future. 
 
The event created and promoted community cohesion with different ethnicities, ages and 
genders who made up the membership of the groups sharing their skills and passion in their 
chosen crafts. 

Page 32



  

“We set out to show people that Rochdale has 
some wonderful green spaces and parks and 
that between them they offer something for 
everyone.  Parks are not just about exercise; 
they are about bringing people together across 
the whole community and enjoying food and the 
company of your neighbours” 
Tracie Powers 
Director, Vintage Worx Community 

Development Trust 

 

Recipient: Vintage Worx Community Development Trust 

Project: Wonderful Versatile Parks 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £6,849 

 

Vintage Worx (a community led voluntary group based in Falinge Park) delivers services, 
activities and projects that aim to improve personal development, increase skill levels, assist 
unemployed people to gain sustainable employment, reduce isolation and increase social 
interaction and improve community cohesion.  Local residents from predominantly the 
Falinge, Spotland and North Central wards can participate in their job club, attend training 
courses, undertake personal development projects and access support services.  Weekly 
workshops in card-making, glass painting, ceramic mosaics, upcycling, textiles, photography, 
art for beginners, sweet-making and digital inclusion reduce isolation and encourage people 
to get involved in arts and crafts.  A programme with a holistic approach to tackling obesity is 
available consisting of a twice weekly weight management plan that includes nutrition advice, 
weigh-in, rebound fitness and Zumba classes, health walks and healthy cooking classes.  
Vintage Worx also deliver a weekly gardening club, ESOL classes, and offer community 
enterprise and community group advice sessions.  Twelve community events are organised 
in the park each year with different themes and activities and Vintage Worx operates a 
community café which offers work experience opportunities to young people of the borough. 

Page 33



  

 

Vintage Worx delivered a number of events in Falinge Park aimed at promoting the 
advantages, convenience and sheer value of using local parks to improve health and 
wellbeing, family cohesion and community interaction with the objective of encouraging more 
people to use their parks on a regular and repeating basis. 

Page 34



  

“With one of the hottest summers on record the community events held in Falinge 
Park brought people of all ages, backgrounds, ethnicities and abilities together from 
across the borough and allowed us to showcase one of Rochdale’s beautiful green 
spaces.  Attendance figures at all events bar the Fun Run were in excess of 400. The 
Fun Run had a lower attendance but the fact that it was held on the hottest day of the 
year may have contributed to this.  However on the back of the Fun Run we now hold 
a monthly PARK RUN and the numbers from this are steadily growing” 
Tracie Powers 

Director, Vintage Worx Community Development Trust 

 

A family fun run with intermittent inflatable obstacles to encourage families to utilise their 
park for health and fitness attracted people of all abilities.  A monthly Park Run on the first 
Sunday of the month now takes place in Falinge Park with 1 mile, 2 mile or 5 kilometres for 
experienced runners to enhance their fitness levels or the beginners to run at their own pace 
and enjoy their surroundings. 
 
It’s a Knockout (Junior Edition) encouraged children aged 11-16 to set aside their 
PlayStations and Xboxes and enjoy a full day of physical activity in their local park.  Teams 
competed across an eye-catching array of colourful inflatable obstacles that filled the main 
field of Falinge Park.  This event aimed to bring a diverse range of people and groups 
together, improve community cohesion particularly amongst young people and offer 
participants an enjoyable physical challenge. 
 
Around the world community celebration on Sunday 22 July 2018 was a festival with 
international food and crafts that aimed to enhance the understanding of different countries’ 
traditions whether this be cuisine, dance, costume or crafts.  Representatives from 18 
different countries (Ukraine, France, Guinea Bissau, Guinea Conakry, Portugal, Spain, Cape 
Verde, Angola, Pakistan, England, Sao Tome & Principe and Jamaica, Nigeria, Poland, 
Greece, Italy, Congo and Brazil) attended the festival with stalls showcasing traditional 
dishes to sample and displays of national dress and crafts.  The Ukrainian Club created a 
wonderful heritage display with a “typical home layout” with embroidered tablecloths and 
national dress plus they hosted craft workshops.  Children and their families were 
entertained throughout the day with crafts activities, a puppet show, children’s theatre 
workshops, dance performances and music. 
 
The series of events concluded with a showcase of Rochdale’s talented young people with 
Footlight Theatre’s dancing displays, improv-sketches and beautiful singing.  High Crompton 
Morris Dancers delivered a fantastic and varied performance and drummers from Guinea 
entertained with awesome sounds. 
 
The variety of events ensured a wider spectrum of visitors attended with many visiting the 
park for the first time.  Leaflets and pamphlets made available at the events promoted the 
parks and attractions around Rochdale to encourage support for these important green 
spaces. 

Page 35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

“The stumpery has featured in both the 
North West in Bloom and Britain in Bloom 
competitions, both competitions of which 
Rochdale received a gold award” 
Michael Buczman 
Denehurst Park Project Development 

Officer, Rochdale Borough Council 

 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Environmental Management 

Project: The Stumpery at Denehurst Park 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £1,000 

 
Denehurst Park has been transformed over the past few years with new paths around the 
entire park, restored formal garden, two fruit orchards, scrumping lane, Troll bridges, 
wildflower meadow and pirate themed play area.  Friends of Denehurst Park and Rochdale 
Council’s Environmental Management wished to create a new feature in the park opposite 
Denehurst House to add interest to the formal garden area of the park. 
 
The Victorian style stumpery in Denehurst Park required logs, stumps and interesting pieces 
of timber to be added and arranged to complete the structure.  Topsoil was imported to build 
up the different areas of the stumpery for a creative planting scheme including plants such as 
Ferns, Foxgloves, Hostas, Hellebore, Primrose, Epimedium and Native English Bluebells.  
The first stage of the stumpery was planted by students from Redwood Secondary School and 
the second stage was planted by volunteers who work in the park every week over the spring 
and summer months.  A formal gravel path was constructed to meander through and around 
the stumpery to allow park visitors to view the feature and improve accessibility to this part of 
the park as it was only accessible via the old steps leading up to the raised platform. 

The stumpery was planted with Ferns, Foxgloves, 
Hostas, Hellebore, Primrose, Epimedium, Native 
English Bluebells, Lungwort, Solomon's Seal, 
Japanese Anemone, Astilbe and Hart’s Tongue Fern 

Page 36



  

 

The new landscape feature has been welcomed by the community/park visitors as different, 
creative and ecologically friendly.  The feature enhances the shaded area of the park with 
plants selected to ensure they would thrive and provide much needed colour.  With the 
addition of a formal path in the stumpery (through an area that was waterlogged a majority of 
the year), it has enabled people to view a part of the park they would otherwise not venture.  
The new path leads from the far side of the raised platform to bypass the steps and connect 
with the tarmac path through the trees on the other side.  This area of the park with its new 
paths and access ramp is now accessible to all and the stumpery was the setting for the 
inaugural Easter egg hunt hosted in April 2019 enjoyed by over 300 children. 

The stumpery is a Victorian style feature 
similar to a rockery but made from parts of 
dead trees instead.  Some stumps used 
weighed close to a ton.  Over 45 tons of top 
soil was imported to raise the levels around 
the feature stumps and ensure the plants 
were given the right environment to grow in.  
The stumpery is a perfect habitat for several 
types of wildlife and they are known to host 
small mammals, toads, stag beetles and 
numerous insects. 

Page 37



 

 

 

 

  “Feedback has revealed our visitors 
valued the opportunity we created – that 
of interaction with scientific researchers 
and the diversity of attractions we had to 
offer” 
Mohammed Rahman 
Project Leader/Volunteer 

Wardleworth Community Centre 

 

Recipient: Wardleworth Community Centre 

Project: Rochdale Science Extravaganza 

Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 

Awarded: £1,226 

 

Wardleworth Community Centre aims to improve the quality of life of the local community 
through the provision of educational, social welfare, leisure and recreational services.  
Working in partnership with statutory and voluntary organisations, the centre delivers a wide 
variety of activities and events to support the needs of local residents such as a multi faith 
luncheon club for over 50’s, IT skills courses, driving theory training, play scheme, Talk 
English classes, job club, youth clubs for boys and girls and welfare advice sessions. 

 
On Sunday 10 March 2019 Wardleworth Community Centre hosted a Rochdale Science 
Extravaganza to celebrate science with support and advice from the British Science 
Association about providing entertaining and engaging activities for people of all ages.  
Rochdale Science Extravaganza’s theme this year was Women in Science to enlighten 
participants of how women are taking great strides in science, how they made breakthrough 
discoveries in the past and look to shape the future.  Exhibitions, demonstrations and 
presentations to educate and inspire the local community were a theatrical science show, 
exotic live animal zoo exhibition, experiments conducted inside a mobile science lab, 

Page 38



 

 

 

  
 

planetarium to wonder at the night sky, ‘Dippy on the road’ stall and women in science Q&A 
hosted by women working in a variety of science fields including a Clinical Biochemist, 
Audiologist, Science Teachers, Research Fellow in Bio-Mechanics and Occupational 
Therapist.  Presentations were given by event founder Labib Rahman, Hajrah Matlub 
(Nuclear Medicine Technologist) and Habiba Begum (Bio Scientist working for Cancer 
Research UK, Manchester Institute). 
 

Rochdale Science Extravaganza each year endeavours to boost the diversity and inclusivity 
of science with their inspirational exhibitions and presentations to engage the under-
represented into science. 

Page 39



  

“Because of the barriers such as language, culture and economical marginalisation, 
people of our community seldom engage with science.  It’s a privilege to be able to 
create opportunities for people of our community to get scientific entertainment and 
engagement.  It was wonderful to see women wearing hijabs and young people 
engrossed with all the activities” 
Mohammed Rahman 
Project Leader/Volunteer 

Wardleworth Community Centre 

Page 40



 

 

 

     

“…seeing the children experimenting 
and trying anything and everything with 
the Lego and just enjoying it all, with 
the added bonus of getting books out 
afterwards and becoming regular 
Library users” 
Angela Butcher 
Senior Library & Information 

Assistant, Norden Library 

 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 

Project: Norden Library Lego Club 

Fund: Members Fund 

Awarded: £716.27 

 

Norden Library is a community hub for various groups/individuals and organisations with 
resources made available to help people gain access to free information, learn, improve their 
wellbeing and aspire.  The library is an integral part of the community in bringing people 
young and old from all backgrounds together to create a fun, safe and learning environment 
for everyone. 
 
The Lego Club established at Norden Library with sessions every Saturday between 10am 
and 12pm has proved very popular with both children and adults, attracting new young 
members including boys who are underrepresented.  Children and their parents/carers are 
encouraged to be more innovative together and the club supports the national curriculum as 
part of STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths) that promotes creativity, 
problem solving, enhances communication skills, develops critical thinking and literacy 
ability.  A range of Lego sets were chosen including a number of specific education packs 
which enable the children to partake in creative, free play or themed building sessions.  The 
Lego items acquired for the club included Duplo for younger children, building boards and 
Technic Lego for older children with lights, motors and programmable functions to construct 
advanced, intricately designed and authentically detailed builds to enhance the children’s 
play experience.  Lego clubs in libraries are becoming more common across the country and 
they have proven to be a great way of libraries engaging with children. 

Page 41



       

“It has been very successful in making another positive move to get children to use the library 
service as some children have a preconception of libraries and just think of it as books and 
you can’t enjoy yourself and you have to be quiet.  They found out that when they are in 
Norden they can express themselves and be creative and have fun and this in turn has made 
them want to take books out when they have finished playing with the Lego” 
Angela Butcher 
Senior Library & Information Assistant 

Norden Library 

Page 42



  

Page 43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

“…supporting participants to feel 
confident to cycle in traffic and enable 
them to consider cycling as a means of 
transport to commute as well as a 
leisure activity” 
Martin Topham 
Assistant Project Leader 

Petrus Community 

 

Recipient: Petrus Community 
Project: Women’s Roadability Cycle Project 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £750 

 
Petrus Community provides services to vulnerable adults in housing need.  Individuals can 
feel valued and realise their potential by being involved in daily activities that will enable 
them to regain a higher level of independence and make a positive contribution to the 
community. 
 
Petrus Pedals was a successful cycling project with a majority of male participants so 
Women’s Roadability Cycle Project was developed to address the balance by offering an 
opportunity for women to explore the health and leisure benefits of cycling. 
 
A group of women from the Kingsway area over a six week period build on basic safe cycling 
skills they had acquired from the women’s bikeability training.  The Women’s Roadability 
sessions were facilitated by two trained instructors who encouraged the group to participate 
in commuting and leisure cycle rides.  Each session aimed to build confidence to enable the 
cyclists to transition from a traffic free environment to cycling on a road.  Each participant 
was issued with a safety helmet and high vis clothing and instructed how to undertake a 
basic ‘M check’ so they could ensure their bike would be safe to ride.  A closed service road 
on Kingsway Business Park was used to assess cycling skills and teach road riding skills 
including hand signals, road positioning, left and right turns and riding in single file.  The 
group then progressed to using the cycle lane around Kingsway Business Park in  

Page 44



 

 

 

  
 

preparation for cycling on a road with traffic.  A circular route following side roads from 
Kingsway Business Park to Morrison’s supermarket was their first opportunity cycling in 
traffic and the group on their next session planned a route from the Kingsway Business Park 
to Falinge Park that also followed the Sustrans Route 66.  All participants accomplished the 
journey and enhanced their ability to navigate junctions, communicate with other road 
users/pedestrians and identify/react to potential hazards to ensure a safe riding experience. 
 
Petrus Community in conjunction with TfGM have also delivered a basic and intermediate 
bike maintenance course where the group had the opportunity to participate in hands on 
sessions to learn how to mend a puncture, adjust gears and brakes, replace cables and 
routine servicing to keep their bike on the move. 
 
Women’s Roadability Cycle Project has enabled a group of local women to achieve bike 
handling techniques and develop cycling fitness for their daily commute or recreation to 
improve their health and wellbeing. 

Page 45



 

 

  

   “A group from Iceland visited the session 
as part of an exchange trip.  They were 
impressed with the work that was being 
delivered on the ‘doorstep’ of 
communities” 
Scott Hardy 
Programme Manager 

Link4Life 

 

Recipient: Link4Life 
Project: Fit and Fed at Turf Hill Community Centre 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £1,500 

 
Link4Life is a charity that works in the heart of the Rochdale Borough community, inspiring 
people to live more active, creative and healthy lifestyles.  The organisation connects people 
with their cultural heritage, encourage creativity and foster wellbeing for each and every 
member of our diverse community.  Link4Life manages high quality sport and leisure facilities 
including fitness, swimming, team sports, outdoor and adventure activities, curates arts, 
heritage and entertainment including exhibitions, outdoor events, live shows, education and 
projects and delivers targeted community programmes which aim to improve people’s health, 
enjoyment and wellbeing. 
 
Fit and Fed is a response to the inequalities of holiday hunger, isolation, and inactivity as this 
innovative campaign offers fun physical activities and nutritious, healthy meals to some of 
society’s most vulnerable young people.  Summer holidays should be a fun time for children 
and families, but those on low incomes can really struggle due to the cost of extra meals as 
they don’t have access to free school meals.  Fit and Fed helped those families in need 
without attaching any stigma to the provision. 

Page 46



 

 

   
Turf Hill Community Centre during the summer holidays and October half term 2018 hosted 
Fit and Fed sessions that provided an opportunity for local children to participate in multi-
sport activities, arts and crafts and receive a healthy lunch.  Sessions were delivered by 
qualified sports coaches from Link4life.  Parents, guardians and other older children assisted 
the coaches and they got involved in helping at lunch and keeping the children safe and 
active.  Families were welcome to take extra food home after the sessions finished at no 
cost.  In addition, parents were given the opportunity to participate in classes to gain food 
hygiene certificates and skills in cooking on a budget and making healthy family meals. 
 
Many families in the UK are finding it increasingly difficult to cover the costs of bringing up 
children with costs rising faster than incomes.  Fit and Fed was successful in engaging 
children from the area that were in need of free provision during the holidays. 

Page 47



  

“Our project has uncovered a wider breadth 
of history than we initially expected, and 
has also created enduring contacts for the 
Forum” 
Fran Healey 
Trustee 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 

 

Recipient: Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum CIO 
Project: Rooley Moor Visitor Interpretation Boards & Signage 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £2,500 

 
Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum was established to promote high standards of planning 
and architecture in or affecting the area, educate the public in the geography, history, 
natural history, culture and architecture of the area and secure the preservation, protection, 
development and improvement of features or areas of historic or public interest in the area. 
 
Visitor interpretation boards located at Catley Lane Head, Prickshaw, Greenbooth and 
Healey Dell and view finders on Knowl Hill and Top of Leach provide information about the 
physical and social history of the area with QR code links to the Rooley Moor 
Neighbourhood Forum’s website.  The interpretation boards contain links to four heritage 
trails where visitors to the area can print their own copy of the route and download GPX 
files.  These heritage trails are short walks that can be joined together to accommodate 
walkers of varying abilities. 

Page 48



  

 

Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum has delivered the project with support from 
Touchstones, the Pioneers Museum, the Ramblers Association, Rochdale Connections 
Trust, Rochdale Council and most significantly with a substantial input from the local 
community.  Members of the community have worked together to collate historical records 
about the area which have been summarised into the heritage trails and signage.  Design 
work has also been carried out in the community, and decisions about final signage locations 
have been a collective community decision.  Heritage Lottery Shared Heritage funding of 
£9,400 was secured by Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum and a grant contribution from 
Rochdale Council enabled the Forum to deliver the overall project outcomes. 
 
Rooley Moor interpretation boards and signage will raise the profile of the history of the 
cotton famine and the road, and educate the public about the heritage of the Rooley and 
Knowl Moors area. 

“The project has engaged with members of the community to research and 
better understand the rich and complex heritage of the area.  The fact that this 
detail is all now recorded on the Forum website (www.RMNF.org.uk), and 
signposted for the public through the visitor interpretation boards and social 
media, and as a result of the publicity drawn by this project, means that the 
outcomes will endure and will have a lasting effect both within and beyond the 
local community” 

Fran Healey 
Trustee, Rooley Moor Neighbourhood Forum 

Page 49



  

“Only 1 in 5 children in Greater Manchester are active 
enough outside of school (30 minutes per day) and 6 
in 10 children do not meet the Chief Medical Officer’s 
recommendations of 60 minutes of physical activity 
per day.  Clubs such as these can help increase the 
number of children meeting these recommendations 
in turn helping to contribute to reducing obesity levels 
and the risk of developing further health problems in 
the future” 
Leigh-anne Carnall 

Programme Manager, Link4Life 

 

Recipient: Link4Life 
Project: Deeplish Multi Activity Club 
Fund: Communities & Engagement Priority Fund 
Awarded: £1,500 

 
Link4Life is a charity that works in the heart of the Rochdale Borough community, inspiring 
people to live more active, creative and healthy lifestyles.  The organisation connects people 
with their cultural heritage, encourage creativity and foster wellbeing for each and every 
member of our diverse community.  Link4Life manages high quality sport and leisure 
facilities including fitness, swimming, team sports, outdoor and adventure activities, curates 
arts, heritage and entertainment including exhibitions, outdoor events, live shows, education 
and projects and delivers targeted community programmes which aim to improve people’s 
health, enjoyment and wellbeing. 
 
Deeplish Multi Activity Club was established to provide regular weekly sports, fitness, 
physical activity and arts sessions to children 8-12 years old.  The sessions targeted both 
boys and girls from the local and surrounding areas of Deeplish.  Working in partnership with 
Deeplish Community Centre, the Multi Activity Club was designed to target young people 
who do not traditionally engage with sport and physical activity.  Through offering a wider 
programme in the community and ensuring choice and variety, Link4Life aimed to engage 
more young people in physical activity in turn increasing the levels of physical activity among 
young people within the borough.  Sessions aspired to improve the emotional health and 
wellbeing of participants, increase children’s self-esteem, communication skills and 
collaborative approach to sport and physical activity, provide a continued pathway of sport 
and physical activity outside of traditional clubs, bring together young people from different 
backgrounds and keep local children engaged in positive activities in the evenings. 

Page 50



 

 

 

Children and young people contributed to the decisions about the activities they wanted to 
take part in throughout the 25 week programme delivered by Link4Life Sports Coaches and 
young people who exceeded the age limit of the club were given the opportunity to volunteer 
on the activities.  Children engaged in activities such as dodgeball, cricket, football, tennis, 
badminton, fun games and fitness. 
 
An initial challenge for the multi-sport club was engaging the girls into participating in the 
sport activities.  To help overcome this issue, an arts element was introduced to encourage 
the girls to keep attending the multi-sport club and slowly over the weeks the girls integrated 
into the sports sessions.  The girls now really enjoy taking part in sports, especially learning a 
new skill which builds up their confidence and in turn helps them to participate and compete. 
 
Deeplish Multi Activity Club has provided opportunities for children to keep active outside of 
the school setting at the right time and at the right place, which echoes the five rights of a 
Doorstep Sport Programme, (the national charity ‘Streetgames’ central programme) activities 
being carried out at the right time, in the right place, with the right people, for the right price 
and in the right style.  Activities delivered not only supported physical health but also 
connected children and young people and promoted wellbeing.  Sport teaches key skills such 
as teamwork, understanding and self-discipline, brings people together, creates pride in a 
community, breaks down social boundaries, and inspires people to make a difference in their 
own lives and for others. 

“The local area of Deeplish houses families from many different cultures and 
backgrounds.  Language can be a barrier when accessing any kind of support 
however an example where sport can overcome this barrier could be seen at the 
multi-sport club.  A young family who had recently moved to this country and to the 
Deeplish area came into Deeplish Community Centre and was encouraged to bring 
their child along to the multi-sport club to help integrate them with the local area.  The 
young boy was very shy and reluctant to join in at first, however, when the group 
started to play football the young boy joined in as he didn’t need any instruction or 
need to understand the sports coach, he just played.  Over the weeks the young boy 
started to practice his English further with the help of another child who happened to 
speak his native language” 
Leigh-anne Carnall 

Programme Manager, Link4Life 

Page 51



APPENDIX 5

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2019/20

REVENUE FUNDS 2019/20 = £177,915

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget Available 

2019/20
Notes

REVENUE FUNDS

Projects Fund £24,516 £54,977 £0 £79,493 £0 £79,493 Fund to resource larger revenue and Rochdale Township 

wide projects that meet the Township's priorities.  Base 

budget of £54,977 with £24,516 unallocated funds b/f from 

2018/19.

Members Fund £0 £30,000 £0 £30,000 £0 £30,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community 

and environment.  Base budget of £30,000 will provide each 

Rochdale Township Councillor with £2,000 to allocate to 

revenue projects within their Ward.

Ward Fund £0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 £0 £20,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community 

and environment.  Base budget of £20,000 will provide each 

Rochdale Township Ward with £4,000 to allocate to projects 

within their Ward.

Township Allocated 

Funds

£48,422 £0 £0 £48,422 £0 £48,422 Brought forward budget of £48,422 for pre 2019/20 

approved projects.

TOTAL £72,938 £104,977 £0 £177,915

CAPITAL FUNDS 2019/20 = £102,830

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget Available 

2019/20
Notes

Capital Fund £0 £102,830 £0 £102,830 £0 £102,830 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the 

Township priorities.  Base budget of £102,830.

TOTAL £0 £102,830 £0 £102,830

Page 1 of 1

P
age 52



 

 

Form RT02 1 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199//2200 
 

 

Rochdale Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by harmonious 

and diverse communities.  We want the town to be proud of its co-operative spirit and industrial heritage; to 

build on these qualities for a prosperous future as part of the City Region.  Efforts to increase community 

cohesion and involvement from people of different generations, backgrounds and cultures must permeate 

all activities. 
 

 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit 

projects on relevant application forms for funding from Rochdale Township Funds.  All projects must show 

how they will address the Rochdale Township priorities of: 

 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 

work and invest. 

 Prosperity - We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

2. Projects must be 

 

a) Within the powers of the Council. 

b) Supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

c) Benefit the Township community. 

d) Support the Township’s priorities and the Township Plan. 

e) Be sponsored by a Rochdale Township Councillor who is prepared to recommend the project/grant and 
justify its significance to the Township’s priorities. 

 

3. Who may apply? 

 

a) Council Services. 

b) Partner organisations (Link4Life, etc). 

c) Non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank account. 
 

4. Activities that can be funded 

 

a) Promoting active citizenship, voluntary effort and democratic involvement. 

b) Promoting community-led food-growing, horticulture and landscaping. 

c) Promoting community cohesion. 

d) Promoting safer neighbourhoods, including diversionary activities for young people.  

e) Promoting healthy living. 

APPENDIX 6 

Page 53



 

 

Form RT02 2 

 

f) Promoting inter-generational understanding and cooperation. 

g) Promoting equality of opportunity for people with disabilities. 

h) Promoting cycling, walking and horse riding and developing routes for these. 

i) Promoting Rochdale’s heritage. 

j) Increasing recycling and waste minimisation. 

k) Starting up or reviving community groups, subject to the group working with a recognised agency 

(Link4Life, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, etc). 

a) Purchase of street furniture eg seating, paving, railings, bollards, fencing, lights, CCTV. 

b) Equipment hire or purchase, eg IT, sports, arts and crafts materials and equipment. 

c) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by Township. 

d) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 

e) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff in addition to normal duties. 

f) Hiring or renting of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 

g) Hiring of vehicles: short-term hire only, and not where there is viable public transport alternative. 

h) Trips and outings with an educational value or part of larger programme. 

 

6. Activities that may not be funded 

 

a) Activities already started before funding is awarded. 

b) Work that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 

services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

c) Parties. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

e) Projects to benefit individuals. 

f) Improvements to private land, unless there is a demonstrable community benefit.  

g) Repairing unadopted roads. 

h) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 

i) Contributing to charitable collections or running fund-raising events. 

j) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 
 

7. Items that may not be purchased with Township funds 

 

a) Alcoholic drinks. 

b) Motor vehicles. 

c) Items bought before Township has given written approval. 

d) Insurance. 

5. Items that can be funded 

Page 54



 

 

Form RT02 3 

 

8. Responsibilities of community groups applying for or in receipt of a grant 

 

a) To submit applications on the correct form. 

b) To only submit proposals that meet the terms and conditions and promote agreed priorities and 

objectives in a cost-effective way. 

c) To use grants only for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 

breakdown of expenditure. 

e) To make claims for approved funding within 6 months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

f) Successful applicants must complete and return a project evaluation form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 

detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Rochdale Township Office within 

one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 

being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

g) To claim VAT on purchases relating to the project only if they cannot claim it back from HM Revenue 

and Customs. 

h) To ensure that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), regulations (such as health 

and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

i) To have adequate policies and procedures in place to protect children, young people or vulnerable 

adults when applying for a project to work with such people. 

j) To ensure adequate insurance (eg public liability) is in place if required. 

k) To agree that funding received for a project does not imply any commitment by the Council to continue 

funding after the agreed finishing date. 

l) To seek approval from the Townships & Communities Manager to dispose of or transfer any items 

acquired with the grant. 

 

9. Responsibilities of Services commissioned to deliver projects 

 

a) To abide by the commissioning process set out in Section 15. 

b) To complete a project brief and supply supporting documentation. 

c) To ensure alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 

breakdown of expenditure or timescale of delivery. 

 

10. Responsibilities of Township Office 

 

a) To ensure the application and decision-making process set out in section 13 is followed. 

b) To make payment of the grant upon receipt of invoices/receipts, subject to 11b below. 

Page 55



 

 

Form RT02 4 

 

11. Responsibilities of Townships & Communities Manager 

 

a) To make decisions, in consultation with the Ward Councillors, about the future of the project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not been re-elected.  

 

12. Limitations 

 

a) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 

by Township Funds. 

b) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 

not adhered to. 

c) The Council reserves the right to add specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the purpose of 

the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

13. Application and Decision Making Process 

 

a) Council Member or Officer submits Project Proposal Form (RT01) to Township Office. 

b) Township Office will send Application Form (RT02) to group or invite Project Brief from Service. 

c) Township Office checks application form to see if the project meets the terms and conditions of the 

fund. 

d) Township Office refers back proposals not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application 

forms to the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation, and may request applicants to 

supply additional information. 

e) Township Office refers proposals for funding over £5,000 to the next Rochdale Township Action and 

Resources Committee for decision. 

f) Township Office can use the officer scheme of delegation for proposals for funding of £5,000 or less. 

g) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Area Forum Sub Groups to seek 

their support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project. 

h) Any disputes concerning the allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale Township Action 

and Resources Committee for decision. 

i) Township Office will notify applicants of decisions in writing within 15 working days of a Committee 

decision or within 5 working days of an officer decision. 

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

 

14. Delegated Decision Making Process 

 

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition 

Spokespersons of Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee, may decide on all projects for 

£5,000 or less. 

b) Township Office will ask Members to respond in writing within 10 working days.  A nil response is 

considered a response in support of the application. 

Page 56



 

 

Form RT02 5 

 

c) Members will make decisions based on the information included in the application form. 

d) Township Office will advise applicants in writing within 15 working days of a decision on the outcome of 

their application. 

e) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

f) Township Office will make a written record of the officer decision: 

i. Project reference number. 

ii. Description of project. 

iii. Officer decision. 

iv. Date of decision. 

v. Reasons for decision. 

vi. Comments received from the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons with dates. 

vii. Township Office will ask Members to state the reasons for not supporting the officer’s decision. 

 

15. Commissioning Process 

 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the 

specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant Service to ensure alternative 

funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) The Service Provider should negotiate with Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee prior 

to incurring any additional costs if they wish to make variations in costs or outcomes. 

d) Where Township wishes to vary the specification – the Service Provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee. 

e) Where a Service Provider wishes to vary the specification, they should submit the variations to the 

Townships & Communities Manager with justification prior to incurring additional costs for 

consideration by the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee.  The Committee may 

decide not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if 

the Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 

Funds. 

f) The Service Provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the 

cost of the project on the Townships & Communities Manager receiving evidence of the start of the 

project as agreed.  Stage payments may be agreed. 

g) The Service Provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a Service Provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Rochdale 

Township Action and Resources Committee may, after consultation with the Service Provider, withhold 

funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) The Service Provider must bear any unapproved additional costs incurred, unless agreed otherwise 

with the Rochdale Township Action and Resources Committee. 

j) Service Providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment. 

 

Page 57



Report to Rochdale South Township Committee

Date of Meeting 5th June 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Report Author Peter Thompson
Public/Private Document

Rochdale South Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 
2019/20

Executive Summary

1. To request that the Rochdale South Township Committee confirm its 
delegated decision making arrangements and make appointments to the 
Township Sub-Committees, including the Chairs, Vice Chairs and substitute 
members; the appointment of “lead” opposition spokespersons; and the 
appointment to other bodies.

Recommendation

2. That the Sub-Committee structure of the Rochdale South Township 
Committee comprising the Rochdale South Township Action and Resources 
Delegated Sub-Committee and the terms of reference, as described at 
appendix 1 of the report be approved.  

That Members are appointed to the Rochdale South Township Action and 
Resources Sub-Committee (including the Chair, Vice Chair and the lead 
opposition spokesperson); as detailed at Appendix 2 to this report.

That the relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to the following Area 
Forums:-

a. Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
b. Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum
c. Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum
d. Castleton Area Forum
e.    Kingsway Area Forum
f. Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum
i.

That Members be appointed to the following Township Bodies:-
a. Older Person’s Champion 
b. Younger Person’s Champion

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



c. Rochdale Township Planning Panel

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution, which 
states that: appointments to Township Sub-Committees, Township Working 
Parties, Partnership Arrangements and Local Outside Bodies shall be made 
at the first meeting of the appropriate Township Committee in the new 
Municipal Year’. 

The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any 
matter detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is 
essential to take a decision. 

The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the 
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and 
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other 
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township. The Committee 
has delegated powers to make appointments to a number of other bodies as 
detailed in Appendix 2

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Rochdale South Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub-Committee 
will exercise formal powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as the Committee for 
dealing with ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for 
making grant approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township 
Funds.  

Area Forums – The Township Committee appoints appropriate Ward 
Members to the area forums. 

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could choose not to appoint Sub-Committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves but this may have a detrimental impact 
on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business. The Committee could also, if it chose to do so, adopt alternative 
Sub-Committee arrangements.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

Page 59



The Township Committee is requested to confirm its delegation 
arrangements to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with 
relevant and statutory procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-
Committee and the working groups might limit member involvement in key 
initiatives for the Township.

6.

Consultation

7. Not required.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers Not applicable

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 60



ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES 
DELEGATED SUB-COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

1. To receive and consider the minutes arising from meetings of the Ward/Area 
Forums and other Township Priority Groups and related bodies, referring matters 
of concern to the Township Committee.

2. To exercise the following delegated powers as detailed in Part 3 of the Council’s 
Constitution – Responsibility for Functions

A. Determination of objections/representations in respect of the Appointment 
of Hackney Carriage Stands

B. Urgent designation of a Conservation Area unless deemed to be strategic 
in nature by the relevant Director and where such items are not 
Development Plan Documents.

C. To deal with urgent matters within the remit of the Rochdale South 
Township Committee

3. To exercise under delegated powers the following powers of the Rochdale South 
Township Committee (as contained within Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution – 
Responsibility for Functions )
A. Confirmation of Traffic Regulation Orders which are the subject of 

objection by persons directly affected by the proposal (i.e. in occupation of 
premises in the immediate vicinity of the proposal) other than in 
circumstances where a Township Committee chooses not to confirm an 
Order deemed strategic in nature by the Director of Neighbourhoods in 
which case the matter shall be referred to the Cabinet

B. Closures or diversions of highways, including footpaths and bridleways, 
deemed to be contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods

C. Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, 
S.9)

D. Traffic regulation for special areas, for example, Country Park ( Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.22)

E. Pedestrian crossings, for example, pelican and zebra crossings (Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.23)

F. Street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.29)
G. Byelaws for street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.31)
H. Installation of road humps which are the subject of significant objections 

by people directly affected (as determined by the Director of 
Neighbourhoods)

I. Making Up of Private Streets – Part IX of Highways Act 1980
(i) The private street works code

Page 61



(ii) General
(iii) The advance payment code

J. Power to determine applications to make Orders under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 deemed

K. contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods
L. To keep definitive map and statement under review 
M. Power to make Footpath Creation Orders under the Highways Act 1980 

S.26
N. Reclassification of roads used as public paths under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981
O. Power to designate public footpaths as cycle tracks under the Cycle 

Tracks Act 1984
P. Consideration of any other matter that may be referred to the Township 

relating to the regulation of highways, footpaths, bridleways etc. 

4. To have full responsibility for all aspects of devolution (including any related 
delegated budgets and Rochdale South Township Funds) and the 
implementation and development of the Township Plan.

5. To receive reports from ‘devolved’ and ‘influenced’ Services detailing their 
response to the Township priorities in the Township Plan and the development of 
their respective Service Plans to reflect those priorities.

6. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township Funds), 
to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met or are capable of being met before any decisions are made.

7. To consider and comment on quarterly monitoring reports on devolved funding 
with a subsequent report to Rochdale Township Committee.

8. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township Funds, 
ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions are made.

Page 62



Appendix 2

Members are asked to consider appointments to the following Sub-Committees and 
to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2019/20 Municipal Year. 

Rochdale South Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee
Councillor Zaman (Chair), Councillor Wraighte (Vice Chair)
Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Brett, Farnell, Hornby, Howard, Meredith, 
Nickson, Rashid, Sheerin, Angela Smith, Sullivan (Lead opposition Spokesperson) 
and Zaheer.
 

Area Forum

The area Forums included in Rochdale South Township Committee are:
a. Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
b. Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum
c. Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum
d. Castleton Area forum
e. Kingsway Area Forum
f. Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum

Other appointments 

1. Older Person’s Champion (Councillor Sheerin appointed in 2018/19)
2. Younger Person’s champion (Councillor Meredith appointed in 2018/19)
3. Rochdale Township Planning Panel (one member from each of the 

Township’s five Wards should be nominated)

Page 63


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	7 Neighbourhood Planning – Designation of the proposed Thornham St. John's Neighbourhood Area and Forum
	8 Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Rochdale Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Rochdale Township Funds Review

	9 Rochdale South Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2019/20
	Appendix for Appointments report - RT South 19-20
	Appendix 2 - appointments


